HAMPSHIRE COUNTY GROUP INSURANCE TRUST

Executive Committee
Meeting Notice and Agenda
March 16, 2022

9:00 A.M.
Via ZOOM Teleconference

Call to Order RK
Approval of Minutes of February 2022 RK
Financial Report (Vote) JS
Month of February 2022

Income & Expenses & Operating Expenses

For Trust and Wellness Initiative
Wellness Update MK
Staffing/Budget JS
CVS Covid Test Kit, Reimbursement IS
IT Update JS
Milliman Review and Contract JS/IG
Reinsurance JS
Adjournment RK

Meeting Schedule

Insurance Advisory Committee — April 13, 2022, 10:00 a.m., via Zoom
Executive Committee — May 11,2022, 9:00 a.m., via Zoom
Executive Committee — June 15, 2022, 9:00 a.m., via Zoom




Joseph Shea is inviting you to a scheduled Zoom meeting.

Join Zoom Meeting
https://uscezweb.zoom.us/i/83128513927?;)wdxaUVUMVNOSXFKdzBuUD)EthPWGdnUTO9

Meeting ID: 831 2851 3927

Passcode: 383384

One tap mobile

+16465588656,,831285139274#,,,,%383384# US (New York)
+13017158592,,831285139274#,,,,*383384# US (Washington DC)

Dial by your location
+1 646 558 8656 US (New York)
+1 301 715 8592 US (Washington DC)
+1 312 626 6799 US (Chicago)
+1 669 900 9128 US (San Jose)
+1 253 215 8782 US (Tacoma)
+1 346 248 7799 US (Houston)
Meeting ID: 831 2851 3927
Passcode: 383384
Find your local number; https://us02web.zoom.us/u/kbpNJhBxuy




HAMPSHIRE COUNTY GROUP INSURANCE TRUST

98 KING STREET
NORTHAMPTON, MA 01060

TO: All Trust Member Units

RE: Minutes of February 16, 2022
Executive Committee Meeting
Via Zoom Teleconference

MEMBERS PRESENT:

Russ Kaubris Lisa Banner Michelle Hill
Rich Carmignani Jr Deborah Kuhn Donna Whiteley
Denise Cashin Emily Russo

OTHERS PRESENT:

Joseph Shea Cynthia Smith Diane Sexton

Michele Komosa

CALL TO ORDER
In compliance with the Governor’s orders suspending certain provisions of the open meeting
laws due to Covid-19, this meeting was held via Zoom telephone/video conference.

Chairman Russ Kaubris called the meeting to order at 9:01 a.m. with a quorum present.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES
Chairman Russ Kaubris requested that the minutes of J anuary 19, 2022 be approved by
unanimous consent, all were in favor.

FINANCIAL REPORT

Financial Report

The Financial Report for the month of January was presented reflecting a starting balance of
$6,406,649.32 with a total monthly income received of $5 ,541,121.98 and monthly expenses of
$6,500,569.84 with a total net monthly income of ($959,447.86) and an ending month balance of
$5,447,201.46 with accounts receivable of $1,042,310.64 leaving a total of $40,849,762.19.

Investments and CD’s for January 2022

The investments portfolio value was $14,114,104.09 with a market change of ($499,805.84)
leaving a total of $13,614,298.25. The starting balance in CD’s was $16,172,494.41, with
interest earned of $4,128.72 leaving a balance of $16,176,623.13.

JANUARY EXPENDITURES
The expenditures for the month of January were reviewed.

=

Page 1 of 3




Chairman Russ Kaubris requested that the full financial report be approved by unanimous
consent, all were in favor.

WELLNESS UPDATE
Michele gave an update on the Wellness Initiative program:

e Newsletter — The February newsletter was sent out.

e Spring Challenge — This will run April 4" to May 2",

e Virtual Wellness Events — To date there have been 47 online events hosted including
webinars and cook classes. Recordings of the virtual sessions are made available via a
link on FB to view anytime. There have been 5 more events scheduled for February and
early March.

For more information on any wellness programs contact Michele Komosa via email at
michelek@hcgit.org.

WELLNESS MINI GRANTS

Michele stated she has had difficulty getting reports back from participants and participants have
found it hard to utilize their funds due to covid. Due to these issues, the mini grant program will
no longer be offered. Michele is hopeful to begin something new such as bringing back the
colonoscopy campaign or finding a way to promote biometric screenings.

CVS COVID TEST KIT REIMBURSEMENT
Joe reported the rollout for covid test kit coverage did not work as originally planned. It seems
most needed to be purchased upfront by the member and then submitted for reimbursement. So
far only a couple dozen claims have been processed.

BCBS SERVICE ISSUES

Joe stated we are still experiencing some issues with BCBS. He is meeting with them later today
to discuss this. Joe also explained in our RFP process, BCBS has requested that we have a
benefit comparison done by an actuary to ensure quotes are on identical benefits.

On a motion by Rich Carmignani Jr, seconded by Lisa Banner, it was voted to allow up to
$30,000 to be used to move forward with an actuarial study. A roll call vote was taken with all
in favor.

MEDEX DISCUSSION

Joe stated most members are able to provide their Medicare information timely. In the agenda
packet there was a notice that one of our units uses to ensure their members are aware of the
policies, as well as information provided by BCBS on Medicare guidelines in hopes that the
additional information may be useful for units to share.

EASTHAMPTON REQUEST
Joe reported that Easthampton paid their March premiums late. They have been assessed a fee
which they are requesting a one-time waiver on. This was followed by some discussion.

On a motion by Donna Whiteley, seconded by Rich Carmignani Jr, it was voted to allow
Easthampton a one-time waiver of their late fee assessment. A roll call vote was taken with all

in favor.
O,
Page 2 of 3




EC OPEN POSITION

Joe explained we still needed someone to fill the EC vacancy for a town under 5,000. Joe stated
the Trust agreement is specific on the EC required representatives so the position cannot be filled
by just anyone unless the Trust agreement was changed. It was discussed to leave the seat open
until someone representing a town under 5,000 fills it.

NATUROPATHIC CARE

Joe stated a member reached out inquiring about coverage for Naturopathic care. Joe inquired
with BCBS who stated it is not covered by them as it is not considered to be medically
necessary. The EC had a limited discussion about this and concluded with not adding this to
coverage at this time.

ADJOURNMENT
Chairman Russ Kaubris requested to adjourn the meeting by unanimous consent at 9:56 a.m., all
were in favor.

Respectfully submitted,
Cynthia Smith

Meeting Schedule
Executive Committee — March 16, 2022, 9:00 a.m., via Zoom
Insurance Advisory Committee — April 13, 2022, 10:00 a.m., via ZOOM
Executive Committee — May 11, 2022, 9:00 a.m., via Zoom

@ Page 3 of 3




f/,w

9L'S0L'T SS'YTTT 00'8YTC 0y TT8Y'T CETI80T  O00TE6T  6LTI8Y'TT  00°0S8°ZZ 00°00L'LL 00059 V0T Aiejes-uoN ejo
= - 81800 Jasspu| “LOL
9L°S07 SS'Lby 65°8¢Y 817687 [44:i 43 09'9¢r 00°008't 00°000°€ 000007 SALMLN | s8is
80°8¢ TTLL €96 00000 00°000°E 00°000°€ 3LVLS JOLNO/NITAAVEL | olzs
00°00S 00°00S ONINIVYL | 0Zeg
& - SaNOHdT1L| oS
00°00T 0091 00'0SLT 00'0SL'T 00'052°T SANOBALIUNS | 0825
99°/6¢€ S6°TrS 66 T¢E "ddNS 440 3 AYINOILVLS | Oz
00°005'S 0€'6 €T 00'009'6 00'000°S2 0000052 00°000°ST SSANTIIWSINVYO ININ | - 08es
TS'STLT 18Ty ¢C8e IYLN3Y ¥3L3W IoVISod | sizs
[44:12 00°00S€ 00'00S‘€ 00005 (edumis) 3ov1s0d | 0z
- 00°00T SHOOE/SOVWNIAVASMIN | 0855
99'66 182 £6°70¢ 69'€9 00°00S 00°00£ 00°00S SISNIAXI OSIN | 085S
St'19¢ 00°00SC 00000 00005 11ddNg ¥3LNWOD 2301440 | ozvs
80°0T 80°0T 8T'0T YA A4 00°009 00°009 00°00S S3ddNS A004 | - 06¥s
86'SLE 64°S0Y 00°009°€ 00'00S‘€ 00°009°€ LINUILNVINONGTIAL | oves
00°000‘s 00°000°8 00°000€ 00°000°S 00'000C€ WO ozes
00°00S‘€T 00°005CT 00°000°2T (4PnY) SIDIAYIS LNOD WAV | s0es
00°00s 0000Z°T 00°002‘T Piipied
00°00€‘T 00'00€T 00°00€‘T 00°00€'T 00°00€'T 00°00€‘T 00°00€‘T 00°00€‘T 00°009°ST 00°0S¥'ST 00°000°ST L

- - (4d8S4) $3DIANIS "INOD WAV | 00ES

02/0€/9-6L/L/L dX3 AMVIVS NON

pajebpng SIN3LI FA0)
020CAd 139ang N3 L

SO'T9T'6C  9T'8ST'6T  SE'STI6C TEVET'6T  9ETTT'6T  LSTC8TY U8'8/8'8T 8Y'VLL'OST  00V6V'LES 0002868t 00°968°891 SLH3NZE 3 SFOVM"L0L

= - XYL SNI HLTV3H dW3NN 6815
08¢ 414 08¢ 0¥'8¢ 0v'8t 017'8¢ 0€'TC 0€'TC 00°0S5¢€ 00°0z¢e 00°0ze FONVHNSNIZAN | sels
S8°€00°S S8'€00°S S8'€00'S G8'€00°S S8'€00°S G8'€00'S S8'€00°S S8'€00°s 00°005'6S 00°00S‘Cy 00°000°0Y FORVUNSNLELTER | #8ic

- = d¥3'O0dd "1SSY 'dN3 | 6815
T0°LSST T0°L5S'T 70°L5SC T0€95C 70°TSSC [Aw43 43 20155 67°SST’Z0T  00'v¥9'v0T 00°000'86 00°000'88 AIHANOLNBMINGD ] Je1S

= = 00°000°s (SPl0)XvLaan | s8is

- - (z90) void | 1ep

@ - VS FIA0TINT dN3L | 0Z1s

B = 3NILY3A0 | 0glS

00°000°S 00000y 00°S.S ALinzono [ sy
8LTL9TZ  €6'89S'TC  8O'6ESTZ  90GESTC  60'6ESTC  08'LS6'TE  SITOSTT bOVESEE  00°000°99€ 00°000°SvE 00°000'5€€ Aavivs [ ouis
Aieniged | Mienuer [ Jequiedeq [ JeqWSAON | 1940jo0 | Jequisdeg | jsnbny Ainp 0S-9/}-2 0€-9/b-L 02/0¢/9-61/L/L 14INIE 2 STDYM

pajebpng pajebpng pajebpng SW3Ll | 3000

T202-Ad 1202-Ad 020ZA4 13oang | wsu

(zzoz ‘og sunr 0} 1Z0z ‘1 AINf) SISNIAXT ONILYHIHO 0202 ¥VIA TVOSIH |

1SNYL IONVINSNI dNO¥D ALNNOD JIIHSJINVH




TT9S6'Ty  18'9SL'Cy  CT095°€E 750880V  8SVEV'BE  68'979'FS C8'E9L'TE  S9'TOS'SLT  00'WE'9S9 00°02676S 00°670v19 : w.:«...g
07'6860T 00'TSE'T L8'€8TT 00VTLL 00799°L 00'€66'T 00'7S6T  8E'9VT'ET 00'000'T¥ 00°00v°LZ 00°00S"0¥ ONISSIO0Md V1VA TVLO0L
0v'686°0T 00'TSE'T L8'E]TT 00vTLL 007992 00°€66'T 007S6'T  8E'9VT'ET 0000007 00°00t°9¢ 00°000°8T ~AY3S HOIL B J08d OSIN | 00Es
0070007 $0d dOLXs3a | oges
00°000'T 00°000°T 00°00S $311ddNS ¥3LNdWOO | 0zvs
- - FYMLAO0S ¥3LNdINOD ocrs
= = 00°000°0Z JUYMAUVH ¥31NdNOD | 0009
Atenigey | Asenuep | Jaquisde@ [ sequenoN | 19qoro0 | Jequisides 3snBny Ainp _ 05-9/1-1 _ 0S-9/1-2 _cw\an\w-mtth 11
pajebpng pajebpng pajebpng SI3Ll |3a0d
| _%eozAd | 120zAd | ozozAd 13oang |wau




06'€vS'69L'e | OV'LOZ'LYY'S | ZE6O'90V'0 | 2G65'2L9'S | 0L ZEE6SY'S | SP /P99 | 088v8'7829 | £292.0v88 oL 16.°060'0 | GETYY'LO0'® | 99°220'%¥S'6 | 26 8El L88'g 3ONYIVE ATHLNOW ONIONA
syusugsnipy
06'evS'69L'e | OV'LOZ'ZVY'S | ZE6O'90V'9 | 2G65TL9'S | 0L ZEE6SY'S | Gh/b9259G | 08 8V8 8.0 | £4°92.°0v88 SL'LSL'050'90 | SE'THYL90'8 | 99/20%¥S'6 | 2o scl leg's soueeg ysed
JONVIvVE

(95°289'229°1) |(98°L¥¥'656) 08'L50'v6. z8'652'€S 1) (szeoe'esl)  [(ge10z'sel’) [(€6°228'2507) | 856/6'682'C |(02 1690402 |(LE 5852871 ¥1°'688'299 Ly 91¥'2e0’L JWOONI ATHINOW L3N V101
09'62€'695'L | ¥8'695'005'0 | G6206°202'G | GE'952'609'9 | v6'820Z8V'9 | L1 8S86IY'O | 860642952 | £8°829°1559 L6'0SY'veL'S | 02'6/8'05L'S | 90'2S¥'2EL'S | L9SSL eV S SASNIAX ATHINOW Y101
12'956'L1 18°9G/'Z¥ 22°095'c€ ¥5'088'0% 85 vEY'SE 68'929'FS z8'€92'2¢ G9'205'GLL ev'Ley'se S6'400'€E 12°898's¢ €€°26.'05 sesuadx3 Bupeiado yun (=101
BEeLE' eS| €0°EI8'/SY'S | €LTPE'69L'S | L8'SIE'895'0 | 95 ¥ 89 | ZZ1eCS98'9 | 91 220Ger L | 8192099L°9 | 856 10'969'G | GZ'7/87/69'G | G8'E85'€69'S | 82 £96260'G sasuadxg ueld [eo]]
88'cye’,0z'C | 98°69L6V2°L | L1208 ev'9LL'0/8") | S6'L6L'8SLL | 920v5'SL9°L | GE'6ZF'€8S L | 81°926'602'1 | 6 8/LShh Zl's02'05t 0Z'96.'G¥t G8'768'GhY WowamS WIefD  “dx3 10
Pled wniwaid Is sg08
aoueUI /M 3snipe ucoay
B6S5°065°L62 08'6L0°€/6 wRWRMeS S808
z6'8€6'C L1'evL'68L 95°070'6.1 8€'650'881 L'208'981 9v'060°981 10°826'v.¢ 68°0%5'GLL €L'69€'G/L §9'/81'G/L €V'89/.'v/1 (BB puj) soueansuiey
00°005'6L5'Y | 00'005'6L5% | 00'009°€0Sy | 00'009'E0S' ¥ | 00'009'E0SY | 00°009°€05% | 00°009°€05% | 000029367 00'00£2£0'S | 00°'00€'CL0'S | 00'00€ZZ0'S | 00°00€220°C usodaq wierd
(ereWnse) 1500 UWIPY SEOT

SASNIdXI ATHINOW
v02L9°168'S | 86°1ZL'LYS'S |G VG6'966'S | LL'OLGZ9L'9 | 6L BLLC62'9 | 9.959782C | SOSL6TIP S LP'v09°'LeL's lress'ezl's | 68'€62'8VZ'Y | 0Z'LPE'SEE'Q | 80°2L1'927°0 IWOONI ATHLNOW V.10
P2329][0D winiwald Ys sS04
sjusunsnipy 1o awoou| 12po
z6'see Z6',19 G6'095 ¥SLLY P29 6E°€€9 96°/8/ 8€798. 75888 G€'98/ 06'66. 86°188 (Laww) suooui3sassyul
TL'ove'l68's | 90'Y0S'0¥S'S | 08'€6£°966'S | €9V06'LOL'9 | GLOGL'E6Z'9 | LE€20WSCS | 60GZI VLS | c08le0sle | L V/8%Tzl'e | ¥SL05'L¥ey | 0TS YBE'S | 0L°062'SZZ0 Paja||0D Wil [ejo]

FWOONI ATHLNOW

9V'L0T'LrY'GS |2E'6Y9'00v'98 [26L6G'2L9'SS |01 /SE'65Y'SS |G¥ [raG9'GS |08'8b8 /8L °08 |82 92/0v8'88 |91 16203008 |SE Zhp 190'8$  |99'/20'v¥S'6$ |2S8EL'188'88 |S022L'8r8 LS ooueleg Buniels fejo L
ssuysnipy
OV'L0T'Lyy'GS |2e'6v9'00V'98 [2516G'CL9'GS |0LLEE6SY'SS |9V /p92G9'GS |08°8Y8'282°98 |€L92.0v8'88 |S1 15205008 |5eznp’ 190'8$ |99'/20'vPS'6S [258EL'188'8S |S02z.'8v8 /S @oueleg yseD buies

g3d

NVl

o3a

AON

100

1d3s

isnonv

Anre

aNnr

AVIA

Aadv

HVIN

SWaLl

1¥0d3d ISNIdX3 ANV INODNI

1SNYL IONVHENSNI dNOYD ALNNOD FHIHSAINYH




€0/zl'L1z'ee

6129.'6v8'01

86'€9€'LP6' LY

6.'9.1'808'0%

26°029'26S LY

BLLLLLEL LY

GZ'291°'969'2Y

L92EL'8GL v

L1 22.'805 vy

£1°5¥6'092' vt

18°169'G16'EY

9T 9v8'ver'ey

S|qEA200Y SJUNOYOY YN |80

€9°045'790°} ro'oLezro’L £8'806'789 82°09%'95. 8/'186'29G'L 20'925'606'L S0'¥66'/82'L 0€'€65'8.8 Z2LB19'L6L'Y 1G°6.1'750'2 88'20.'96¢€ 0€'061°268 PIGEMESY sunosoy
€8'orl'gze’el | GT86Z'FLICL | 60FOLVLL' YL | 02 €H000LE) 89'/G2'0¥8'Cl | 8¥'€L6'SEF'EL | 95°502'068°CL | 89G6L'ELZ €L 9€'8C9'PPS'ElL | 88'2SO'VTY'EL | 68°9FELSZ L 12°0,0'866'C} feoL
abuey) jesuep
(z'151°982)  [(r8'508°661) 68°090 7L ¥ (8r'viz'ovl) 0z ¥8Z ¥0¥ (80'2eL¥SY) 88'605' /) Z€7/95'891 8Y'G/6'6L1 66°50€°291 89'9/Z'652Z ZlL'/z20'10e 1sam0)
usodaq

GZ'86Z'rio'el

60%0L ' PLL'YL

0Z'e¥0'00L'€L

89°/5z'0v8'elL

8¥'€/6'GeV'EL

95'60.'068°¢1

89s6l'cLLel

9€'829'vvs el

88'259'vZy'cl

68°9v€'/5Z'eL

12°0£0'866°C|

60°€Y0°269°Z1

anjep oljojuod

LG'€GE08L'9L | €L'e29'9/L9L | Ly ver'EsL oL Z5v/e'89L'9L | /8'€9l'b9L'oL | LOBYE 0L 9L €L'€0P'951'9L | LL'€e2'e5L'oL | Z82/p'srL oL LL7e€vpL'9L | 95'spL 0Pl 9L 18'¢68'sgL 9L aouejeg
8e0¢eL'e 2.8y 68'6LL'Y S90LZ'y 98'vl8'e 8Z'GY6'e 95'0LL'Yy 0c'09.'e oLSEL'y 12'266°¢ G/158'% 2zelLl's Jsasau|
Hsodaqg
€L'ET9'9LL'9L | LY veP2LL'9L | 25 7/E'891°OL L8°89L'79L'9L | LO'BPE09L'9L | €2°€0'951 9L LL'€eT'CSL'oL | L8'Zib'ovLOL | L2 /eS vl oL 9G's¥2'0vL'9lL | 19°€68'GEL'9L 65°GLL°/2Z)1'9L $.d0
SjUBW)SAAU|
€2°610'00¢ IsnL g3d0
€26l ysauau]
00°000'00€ ISt g3d0
96°'1L08'V¥Y'y 96°108'vr'y 96°L08' V'Y 96°L08'viY 'y 96°L08'viv'y 96°L08'vib'y 96°L08'PrY'y 96°L08'vib'y 96°1L08'vri'y 96°1L08' ¥ty 96°L08'Phy 'Y 96°1L08' Vit susodaq Jequuapy jejoL
Susodag
96°'L08'VrY'y 96°1L08'vr'y 96°L08'vii'y 96°L08'viv'y 96°L08'viY'y 96°'1L08'vii'y 96°L08' Y'Y 96°L08'viv'y 96°L08'vii'y 96°L08 VY'Y 96°L08'vib'y 96°108'vii'y susodag Jaquiayy
96°L1E'LE 96°LLE'Le 96°Lle'Le 96°L1LE'LE 96'LLE' e 96°LLE'LE 96°L1E'LE 96°LLE'LE 96°/1€'Le 96°L1€'Le 96°Lle'LE 96°L1e'Le 1E0L
sesuadxgy
Swosu]
96°/1€'LE 96°L1e'Le 96'Lle'Le 96'LLe'LE 96'LLE'LE 96°LlE'LE 96°L1E'Le 96°LLe'le 96°LLE'LE 96°L1E'Le 96°LLe'Le 96°L1E'LE PWIL Y2IS '@ OBA paninooy
L52/£'26 6.°802'c6 L¥'/80°'c6 Ge'188'v6 16'65.'v6 16°€55°'06 61°06¢'L6 18'892'/6 60'501'86 89'C16'66 96°8v.'001 0seer’Lo) IE30L
¥6'€6.'L ¥6°€6.L'L 76'€6. 1 ¥6°€6.'L ¥6°€6.'L ¥6'€6.'} ¥6°€6.L°) ¥6°€6.°) 65°208'} 65208°L 68'G59'1L €€'6G6°) sesuadxg
99°/56 Ze61BL zesle'l 99°/S6 Ze616°L 99'/56 €116 LeL/6 leLle Burpuny
6.'802'c6 L¥°/80'c6 GE'188'16 16°65.'v6 16°€55'96 61°06€'./6 18'89Z°/6 6050186 89'216'66 96'8%2'001 0S'eer'L0L zs'1ey'zol 'g's "uag @9kojdw3 3sod
g34 NV o3a AON 100 1d43S lsnonv Alnr aNnr AVIN Adv AV S

UOoljRULIOJU] JUBWI}SOAU| pUY pun4

1SNYL IONVINSNI dNOYD ALNNOD FHIHSINVH




MONTHLY ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

HAMPSHIRE COUNTY GROUP INS INSURANCE TRUST

FOR MARCH 2022 PREMIUMS

MARCH PREMIUMS NOT PAID

AS OF FEBRUARY 28, 2022

TO AVOID LATE ASSESSMENT Fi EE

INVOICE MUST BE PAID BEEORE

March3 2022 .

31112022

ATHOL

CHESTER 3/3/2022
HADLEY 3/1/2022
MIDDLEFIELD 3/2/2022
PLAINFIELD 3/2/2022
SHFD #2 3/2/2022
WILLIAMSBURG 3/2/2022
ASHFIELD 31312022
CHARLEMONT 31312022
EASTHAMPTON 3/3/2022

1,064,570.63




Hampshire County Group Insurance Trust
TRANSACTION REPORT FEBRUARY 2022 (FY22)

STARTING BALANCE GENERAL FUND $ 5,447,201.46
2022
WAR# |TRANSACTION A/P DEBIT A/R CREDIT
FEB PEOPLE'S UNITED
1 BLUE CROSS BLUE SHIELD 5,317,090.59 $ 130,110.87
1 STEALTH/STOP LOSS (FEB) 2,938.92 $ 127,171.95
1 CANARX 13,462.60 $ 113,709.35
2 PEOPLE'S UNITED 99,723.06 | $ 213,432.41
2 PEOPLE'S UNITED 169,542.18 | $ 382,974.59
3 PEOPLE'S UNITED 185,226.67 | $ 568,201.26
3 PEOPLE'S UNITED 18,179.38 | $ 586,380.64
8 PEOPLE'S UNITED 569,639.35 [ $  1,156,019.99
10 PEOPLE'S UNITED 160,085.15 | $  1,316,105.14
18 ESB TO FUND OPEB TRUST 300,000.00 $ 1,016,105.14
18 PEOPLE'S UNITED 792,32715|$  1,808,432.29
18 PEOPLE'S UNITED 50,091.28 [ $ 1,858,523.57
18 PEOPLE'S UNITED 61,332.87 [ $ 1,919,856.44
18 PEOPLE'S UNITED 174,550.68 | $  2,094,407.12
18 PEOPLE'S UNITED 70,678.74 [ $  2,165,085.86
72 PEOPLE'S UNITED 209,118.94 [ $  2,374,204.80
22 PEOPLE'S UNITED 99,741.97 [ $ 2,473,946.77
22 PEOPLE'S UNITED 57,794.88 | $ 2,531,741.65
22 PEOPLE'S UNITED 8,267.50 | $ 2,540,009.15
23 PEOPLE'S UNITED 168,838.05 [ $§ 2,708,847.20
24 PEOPLE'S UNITED 271,881.68 [ $  2,980,728.88
24 PEOPLE'S UNITED 38,04865|$ 3,018,777.53
24 PEOPLE'S UNITED 134,291.84 [ $  3,153,069.37
24 PEOPLE'S UNITED 74,537.44 [ $  3,227,606.81
24 PEOPLE'S UNITED 118,956.22 [ $§  3,346,563.03
24 PEOPLE'S UNITED 5609.02 [ $ 3,352,172.05
24 PEOPLE'S UNITED 123,771.36 [ $  3,475,943.41
24 PEOPLE'S UNITED 8,746.20 | $§  3,484,689.61
24 PEOPLE'S UNITED 165,209.98 [ $§  3,649,899.59
24 PEOPLE'S UNITED 9,846.41 | $ 3,659,746.00
25 PEOPLE'S UNITED 12,375.26 | $  3,672,121.26
28 PEOPLE'S UNITED 1,218,834.77 | $  4,890,956.03
28 PEOPLE'S UNITED 7,391.72 | $  4,898,347.75
28 PEOPLE'S UNITED 210,764.68 | $ 5,109,112.43
28 PEOPLE'S UNITED 595,943.04 | $  5,705,055.47
28 CVS CAREMARK (FEB) 1,457,424.73 $ 424763074
28 BLUE MEDICARE RX (JAN) 436,456.55 $ 3,811,174.19
28 PAYROLL (FEB) 29,261.05 $ 3,781,913.14
28 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE (FEB) 12,695.16 $ 3,769,217.98
28 INTEREST 325.92|$ 3,769,543.90
$ 3,769,543.90
$ 3,769,543.90
$ 3,769,543.90
$ 3,769,543.90
$ 3,769,543.90
$ 3,769,543.90
$ 3,769,543.90
$ 3,769,543.90
$ 3,769,543.90
$ 3,769,543.90

@,




$ 3,769,543.90
$ 3,769,543.90
MEMBER UNIT DEPOSITS ON HAND
FEB Starting Balance>>>>>>>>>>>>>>> [ §  4,444,801.96
$ 4,444,801.96
28 Total $ 4,444,801.96
PEOPLE'S UNITED

FEB Post Employee Benefits Fund Starting Balance>>>>>>>>>>>>>>> | § 93,208.79
28 Retiree Health & Life Ins. 1,793.94 957.66 | $ 92,372.51
28 Total $ 92,372.51

PEOPLE'S UNITED
FEB Accrued Vacation & Sick Time Fund Starting Balance>>>>>>>>>>>>>>> | § 31,317.96
$ 31,317.96
28 Total $ 31,317.96
OPEB TRUST (ESB)

FEB $ =
23 Opening Deposit (from PUB acct) 300,000.00 | $ 300,000.00
28 9 mos. @ 0.40% 19.73 | $ 300,019.73

$ 300,019.73
INVESTMENTS

FEB CD-Florence Savings $ 6,429,302.26
28 6 mos. @ 0.150% (renewed 10/5/21) 73932 | $ 6,430,041.58
28 Total $ 6,430,041.58

FEB CD-Easthampton Savings $ 9,747,320.87
28 9 mos. @.400 (renewed 12/6/21) 34124 $ 9,747,662.11
28 9 mos. @.400 (renewed 2/16/22) 1,282.23 | $ 9,748,944.34
28 9 mos. @.400 (renewed 8/6/21) 1,367.59 | $  9,750,311.93

Total $ 9,750,311.93

FEB Portfolio Value FEB 1, 2022 $ 13,614,298.25

Additional Investment $ 13,614,298.25
28 Investment Earnings/Loss (286,151.42)| $ 13,328,146.83
Total $ 38,146,556.40




a4
rnemm 8759 £SS9 959 8159 8259 0619 £vv9 1949 8L19 (432 L0Y9 STH9 66£9 76£9 w689 | sueld |Iv - 1V.LO1)

¥85¢ 78St 06S¢ 18S¢ 0LSt 69S¢ 65S¢ 0SSt £7ST LEST €2S¢ 61SC L1ST F4%72 60S¢C 66vC sue|d X3a3IN [e1oL
967T 96¢T YOET €6CT [8CT S87T ¥8ZT 78¢1 087T viTT €171 vLTT €121 [%45 69¢T 791 AluQ oshodwz-4
8871 88¢T 9871 887T €321 ¥8¢T SLTT 8971 €921 €921 0SzT SPZT YT oreT oveT LETT AuQ sahojdwz-H
X3a3aw

1572 0TL 0L €0L 60L 10L v69 €69 10L 69 €99 799 899 899 899 999 Sueld Odd 4%H [ejoL
L6€ 66€ 76€ T6€ z6¢ L8€ 6L€ 6LE ¥8¢€ 8¢ L9€ 89¢ 89€ TLE 89¢ 0LE sueld Aliwe [ejo|
¥I€ TTE [4x3 453 LT€ a3 SI¢ %3 LT€ 01€ 96¢ 762 00€ 167 00€ 967 sue|d @ahojdw3 jejo L
€8¢ T8¢ LLT 8/T 817 TLT 79t S99z 04T 69¢ 8¥C Sbe 6T 9T She She Odd 4 [ejoL
ST 7ST 6¥T 15T 0ST LYT vl VT Wi £V 62T 0¢T 67T 6¢T LTT 8zT Anwe4-4
€T 671 87T LTT 8CT veT [14) YT 8Tl 91T 61T STT 07T /1T 81T IT1T AuQ sehojdwa-4
144 6Tt LTy STy TEY 0st [43% 1% TV STv STY LTV 6TY [44% £ T2 Odd H [eloL
9z 17T 344 oy e ot 8T 8€C we THe 85T 8€¢ 6€C e THe we Alwe-H
78T z81 ¥81 S8T 63T 06T 6T 06T 681 78T LLT 64T 08T 08T 78T 6/1 Aluo sahojdwz-H
(0dd) a3¥¥34ax8d 19373 FVD 3n1g

2743 vSTE €9¢¢ 08¢€ 69¢¢ 852¢€ LEeE 00zE L1eE LTE Y243 9zes oses 6TCE [423 LTes sueld OWH d%%H [e10L
11¢T €TCT 445 [rdan €TT 817I 91ZT STZT v1ZT 61CT 11T L1TT (444} et vz 0gCT sue|d Ajiwed [ejo |
ovL 0S. 9L 15. St/ Iyl Wi 9L 32 SS/ Lyl Lyl wL L Lyl G5/ | + 99Aoidwz jejo |
TO€T 1621 v6eT 90€T TOET €671 64CT 6vCT ¥STT €LTT 79¢T 79Tt 9971 SSI eI et sue|d @aAojdw3 g0
LY/T 6YLT 1S/T ¥9/T 8G/T 0S/T GE/T 6T/T ST ST Sv/T Wit 6Y/T SHLT VLT ¥SLT OWH 4 [e01
859 659 €99 999 ¥99 LS9 659 ¥99 €99 049 9/9 ¥L9 8.9 9/9 649 789 Awe4-4
08¢ 78¢ 6§ 08¢ 6L€ 6L€ 0L€ 99¢ 89¢ LLE €L€ s TLE QL€ LLE z8¢ | + @akojdwg4
601 804 60L 8T/ ST/ YTL 90L 639 769 S0 969 969 669 769 £89 069 AuQ sshodwiz-4
S0ST S0ST 18T 9TST TIST 80ST 70ST 84T T6vT S6HT 84T v8YT T8PT vLVT YT ST OWH H [e101
€55 ¥SS 09% LSS 6SS 195 LSS 1SS 1SS 6t TS €4S vS S ShS 8rS Awe4-H
09¢ 89¢ L9€ TLE 99¢ 89¢ TLE 0Lg 18€ 8/€ VLS GLE 0LE L9€ 0L€ €L€ I + o9holdwz-H
765 €39 685 835 938G 6.5 €S 095 095 895 995 995 £9S 195 1SS 78S AuQ sakojdwz-H
¥dv UYIN a34 NvVr 23a AON 120 1d3s [1lsnonv | Alnr aNnr AVIN ydv UVYIN 934 Nvr 3n19 OWH

r44114 1202 NV1d

Junod uejd 0¢02-6102-Al
}sni] edueinsuj dnoig Ajunoy anysdwey




Hampshire County Group Insurance Trust

Claim Payments

2020-Jan
February
March
April
May
June
July
August
September
October
November
December
Jan-21
February
March
April
May
June
July
August
September
October
November
December
January 22
Feb

P = Acturial Projection of Claims or Anticipated Payments,

e’amweﬁeameeeﬁwmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmm

CLAIMS
4,478,889.48
5,222,819.59

5,353,177.63

3,329,731.92
4,511,071.96
4,464,097.48
7,826,890.70
4,823,789.64
4,771,553.13
5,348,857.12
4,979,230.59
4,604,432.34
5,094,645.16
4,866,097.70
5,055,328.42
6,209,756.93
5,272,497.71
5,201,232.55
4,233,942.93
4,199,688.21
4,013,790.09
4,857,186.73
4,665,928.58
5,328,234.25
3,186,088.18
4,253,200.86

> >» >» > > >» 2> >» > > > > > > > > >

AMOUNT PAID

$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
¥
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

5,072,300.00
5,072,300.00
5,072,300.00
5,072,300.00
5,072,300.00
5,072,300.00
5,072,300.00
5,072,300.00
5,072,300.00
5,072,300.00
5,072,300.00
5,072,300.00
5,072,300.00
5,072,300.00
5,072,300.00
5,072,300.00
5,072,300.00
5,072,300.00
4,956,200.00
4,503,600.00
4,503,600.00
4,503,600.00
4,503,600.00
4,503,600.00
4,519,500.00
4,519,500.00

> >» >» > >» >» >» > > > >» > > > > > >

A = Actual Info.

$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

VARIANCE

(593,410.52)
150,519.59
280,877.63

(1,742,568.08)

(561,228.04)

(608,202.52)

2,754,590.70

(248,510.36)

(300,746.87)
276,557.12
(93,069.41)

(467,867.66)

22,345.16

(206,202.30)

(16,971.58)
1,137,456.93

200,197.71

128,932.55

(722,257.07)

(303,911.79)

(489,809.91)
353,586.73
162,328.58
824,634.25

(1,333,411.82)

(266,299.14)

CUMULATIVE VAR.
$ 266,909.23
417,428.82
698,306.45

$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

(1,044,261.63)
(1,605,489.67)
(2,213,692.19)
540,898.51
292,388.15
(8,358.72)
268,198.40
175,128.99
(292,738.67)
(270,393.51)
(476,595.81)
(493,567.39)
643,889.54
844,087.25
973,019.80
250,762.73
(53,149.06)
(542,958.97)
(189,372.24)
(27,043.66)
797,590.59
(535,821.23)
(802,120.37)

E = Estimate based on some actual information




swied xy

winjwaud xy xapaAl

swiep xy

asuadx3j auoydaja)

swiep xyeue)

REYVRENTT

paysijqe1ss pung isnJl 4340
dnueajd aiemyos Suljjig
HVIA - 32ueunsuj yyeaH
Uoi1e20[|e JUsWaIRI 034
11099

zT/9t1/T|104hed 19N
3|geasinquiial adueinsulay
swiep xy

d|geasinquilal aaueinsulay
11 snouep

swie xy

Tt/t/T'|lo1hed 19N

swie|d xyeue)

asuadx3 suoydajay

ga4- @dueunsuj jeruag

(a4 - @deuJnsuj a1

994 -1uay

ge4 -2dueunsuiay
1uswanas |Anb g uipungaud wiepn Ajlyuow

SWieD SAD

SIA XXX Xy 2Je2IP3IA an|g
swite SAD

NO3IV

xyeue)

1Seowo)

sduines uoldweyiseq
JaqeH piemp3

1I90H

pJeog juawiaunay aJiysdwep
pUD jeuoiieN
SIBUIMPIBYD

ANNNN

swire|)n SAD

NONN

J18a1e.43S sndeled
swiep SAD
SJ81IMPIBYD

xyeued

uozLIap

su] dnoJn ySIY - Idd
|eniny uoisog

Ajeay 15 Supy

dnoug Jsuned yijesls
§d04

SOA XXX
oves

00¢s

SO\ XXX

0/¢s

SAA XXX

vS €T TLSL

85°9VS'6EY
G59SY'9EY
86'696'€HT
9T'¥TT
0L'€08'S
¥1°10T
00°000°00€
000096
0Z°T65'9
20°LSS°T
L€°99
SEV68°0T
(G2°988°Z¢€T)
0€°LET’8SE
(zTv08CS)
0v'68€'T
L8°0LLSTY
€V LLL°0T
06°859°L
60'tC
¥4'S8T
ST6Y
00°00€'T
62°679'88T
65°060'LTE'S

SELS
vELS
€€LS
[AFAS
T€LS
0€LS
6CLS
8¢LS

LTLS
€CLS
9¢/S
A
VLS

HOV 2z0t/82/¢
HOV 220z/82/¢
HOV 220z/8T/t
teoe/st/t
¢eoe/8t/t
teoe/8t/t
zeoe/st/t
ceoe/st/t
Teoe/8t/t
Teoe/8t/t
Teoe/8t/t
HOV 720z/91/¢
HOV Z20Z/T1/t
HOV z20Z/0T/¢
HOV 7707/6/t
HOV 7202/8/t
HOV 720Z/€/t
HOV 7202/2/T
7eoe/t/t
1zoz/t/t
zeoz/t/t
7T0e/1/e
7202/1/T
UM 7202/T/T
UM 720Z/T/¢

T




¥ CVS caremark’

February 22, 2022

Joe Shea

Hampshire County Group
98 King St

Northampton, MA 01060

Dear Joe Shea:

Enclosed are the 2021Q4 rebate quarterly gross invoiced amounts for Hampshire County Group. This
report sets forth preliminary estimates of the gross rebate amount invoiced for Hampshire County
Group, by drug manufacturer based on reported drug utilization.

These figures are estimated rebate amounts to be distributed. Actual rebate distributions may vary
depending upon manufacturer payments. Manufacturer payments may be less than invoiced amounts as
a result of, among other things, drug pricing and contract interpretation differences among drug
manufacturers and CVS Caremark. Actual distribution amounts by manufacturer are estimated to be
within five percent of the amounts included in this report. The estimated range for the amount to be
distributed to your company is $1,002,750.26 to $1,055,526.59.

PLEASE NOTE: This is not an estimate of your next rebate payment. This is an estimate of all
rebates to be collected for 2021Q4 over the course of our collection period and will be paid to you
in accordance with your contractual terms.

Please contact your Strategic Account Executive if you have any questions.

Michael S. Mendonca
Sr. Advisor, Trade Finance
PBM Contract Operations

HAMPSHIRE COUNTY GROUP
Rebate ID 00124410 Hampshire County Group //OPT IN, ACSF

G




. - -
3 M I l I I ma n 3424 Peachtree Road NE
Suite 1900
Atlanta, GA 30326-1123
USA
Tel +1404 237 7060
Fax +1404 237 6984

March 14, 2022

milliman.com

Joe Shea

Trust Director

Hampshire County Group Insurance Trust
98 King Street

Northampton, MA 01060

Via email:

Re: Hampshire County Group Insurance Trust Medical Network Reimbursement and Provider
Disruption Analysis

Dear Joe:

Thank you for asking for Milliman’s assistance in facilitating a medical network reimbursement and provider
disruption analysis on behalf of your client, Hampshire County Group Insurance Trust. (“Hampshire
County”). Milliman regularly performs network discount and reimbursement comparison studies to assess
the cost differential in competing networks.

We understand that Hampshire County is currently with Blue Cross Blue Shield of Massachusetts
("BCBSMA”) and is interested in evaluating Aetna and Cigna as alternative carriers. We further understand
that B.R. Fox and Associates (BR Fox) managed an RFP in the fall of 2021, and received repriced claims
from BCBSMA, Aetna and Cigna through October 2021 as part of the bid process.

B.R. Fox is interested in Milliman’s further analysis of medical network reimbursements. We propose that
the prior analysis be redone. This letter describes the proposed Milliman process for the analysis, with
associated fees, and timing.

Proposed Process for Medical Reimbursement Comparison
We suggest the following steps to complete the analysis as outlined:

1. BCBSMA will provide Hampshire County’s historical detailed medical claims data for a recent 24-
month period on an incurred basis with at least two months of runout. This data will reflect the
utilization and reimbursement specific to Hampshire County.

2. We will screen out all claims that should be excluded from the analysis, such as pending, voided,
and denied claims. We will also prepare the data for the alternative carriers and include additional
fields that will enable the respondents to aggregate the data in a defined summary format. We will
send the file, minus the proprietary allowed amount fields, to the other carriers to reprice and disrupt
the data using their own reimbursement rates.

3. In addition to the historical data, we will include templates and questionnaires that the alternative

carriers will complete. Detailed instructions concerning the repricing methodology and disruption
analysis will be provided to the carriers.

@




John Garrish

. L] -
f M|”|man March 14, 2022

Page 2

4. We will review the alternative carriers’ repricing and disruption results and compare to internal and
external benchmarks. We will follow-up with questions as needed.

5. Results will be aggregated and provided to BR Fox & Associates, LLC (“BR Fox”) and Hampshire
County. Note that this analysis will be a network reimbursement and disruption comparison.
Review of administrative and access fees are outside the scope of the analysis proposed.

RFP Support

While not anticipated and not included in this proposal, Miliman is also available for subsequent
development of follow-up analysis in support of producing the best and final portion of the procurement
process or in assessing the administrative and access fees. The timing and fees associated with this
portion of the RFP process can be provided upon request.

Timing & Fees

As soon as we receive the historical data extract from BCBSMA, we can begin creating the files to send to
the alternative carriers. We will need approximately two weeks to create the request to provide to the
alternative carriers once we have received the data from BCBSMA. We plan to give the alternative carriers
three weeks to provide their response. We will then need two weeks to review the response, compile the
results, and follow-up with any outstanding questions.

The cost of performing the analysis is $30,000. Milliman will invoice BR Fox directly at the conclusion of
the project. Should we begin the analysis and work stops for any reason, then we will bill for time incurred
at our standard hourly rates. Any expenses associated with travel and/or onsite meeting time are not
included in the quoted fees and will be approved by BR Fox before the expenses are incurred.

In addition to the signed engagement, please execute the Consulting Services Agreement before we can
begin work.

We look forward to working with you. Please let us know if you have any questions.
Sincerely,

Paul Sakhrani, FSA, CERA, MAAA

Consulting Actuary

cc: Phil Ellenberg (Milliman)
Vicky Coussa (Milliman)




John Garrish

. = = |
L Mllllman March 14, 2022

Page 3

Organization: Hampshire County Group Insurance Trust

Signature:

Name:

Title:

Email:

Phone number:

Date:




CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT

This Consulting Services Agreement (“Agreement™) is entered into between Milliman, Inc. (“Milliman”) and
Hampshire County Group Insurance Trust (“Client”) as of March 1, 2022. Client has engaged Milliman to perform
consulting services as described in a statement of work or engagement letter which references this Agreement. Such
services may be modified from time to time and may also include general actuarial consulting services. The terms
and conditions of this Agreement will apply to all subsequent engagements of Milliman by Client unless specifically
disclaimed in writing by both parties prior to the beginning of such engagement. In consideration for Milliman
agreeing to perform these services, Client agrees as follows:

1,

BILLING TERMS. Client acknowledges the obligation to pay Milliman for services rendered, whether arising
from Client’s request or otherwise necessary as a result of this engagement, at Milliman’s hourly billing rates
for the personnel utilized plus all out-of-pocket expenses incurred. Milliman will bill Client periodically for
services rendered and expenses incurred. All invoices are payable upon receipt. Milliman reserves the right to
terminate this Agreement if any bill goes unpaid for 60 days. In the event of such termination, Milliman shall
be entitled to collect the outstanding balance, as well as charges for all services and expenses incurred up to the
date of termination.

TOOL DEVELOPMENT. Milliman shall retain all rights, title, and interest (including, without limitation, all
copyrights, patents, service marks, trademarks, trade secret, and other intellectual property rights) in and to all
technical or internal designs, data, databases, methods, ideas, concepts, know-how, techniques, generic
documents, and templates that have been previously developed by Milliman or developed during the course of
the provision of the services (the "Milliman Tools") provided such generic documents or templates do not
contain any Client Confidential Information, as defined in the Section below entitled "Confidential
Information". Rights and ownership by Milliman of the Milliman Tools shall not extend to or include all or any
part of Client’s Confidential Information. To the extent that Milliman may include in Milliman’s work any
Milliman Tools, Milliman agrees that Client shall be deemed to have a fully paid up license to make copies of
the Milliman Tools as part of this engagement for its internal business purposes and provided that such Milliman
Tools cannot be modified or distributed outside the Client without the written permission of Milliman or except
as otherwise permitted herein under the Section below entitled "No Third Party Distribution".

LIMITATION OF LIABILITY. Milliman will perform all services in accordance with applicable
professional standards. In the event of any claim(s) arising from services provided by Milliman at any time, the
total liability of Milliman, its officers, directors, agents, and employees to Client shall not exceed, in the
aggregate, three million dollars (83,000,000). This limit applies regardless of the theory of law under which a
claim is brought, including negligence, tort, contract, or otherwise. In no event shall Milliman be liable for lost
profits of Client or any other type of incidental or consequential damages. The foregoing limitations shall not
apply in the event of the intentional fraud or willful misconduct of Milliman.

DISPUTES. In the event of any dispute arising out of or relating to the engagement of Milliman by Client, the
parties agree that the dispute will be resolved by final and binding arbitration under the Commercial Arbitration
Rules of the American Arbitration Association. The arbitration shall take place before a panel of three
arbitrators. Within 30 days of the commencement of the arbitration, each party shall designate in writing a
single neutral and independent arbitrator. The two arbitrators designated by the parties shall then select a third
arbitrator. The arbitrators shall have a background in insurance, actuarial science, or law. The arbitrators shall
have the authority to permit limited discovery, including depositions, prior to the arbitration hearing, and such
discovery shall be conducted consistent with the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure. The arbitrators shall have
no power or authority to award punitive or exemplary damages. The arbitrators may, in their discretion, award
the cost of the arbitration, including reasonable attorneys’ fees, to the prevailing party. Any award made may
be confirmed in any court having jurisdiction. Any arbitration shall be confidential and, except as required by
law, neither party may disclose the content or results of any arbitration hereunder without the prior written
consent of the other party, except that disclosure is permitted to a party’s auditors and legal advisors.

CHOICE OF LAW. The construction, interpretation, and enforcement of this Agreement shall be governed
by the substantive contract law of the State of New York without regard to its conflict of laws provisions. In




10.

the event any provision of this Agreement is unenforceable as a matter of law, the remaining provisions will
stay in full force and effect.

NO THIRD PARTY DISTRIBUTION. Milliman’s work is prepared solely for the internal business use of
Client. Milliman’s work may not be provided to third parties without Milliman’s prior written consent.
Milliman does not intend to benefit any third party recipient of its work, even if Milliman consents to the release
of its work to such third party.

USE OF NAME. Client agrees that it shall not use Milliman’s name, trademarks, or service marks, or refer to
Milliman directly or indirectly in any media release, public announcement, or public disclosure, including in
any promotional or marketing materials, customer lists, referral lists, websites, or business presentations,
without Milliman’s prior written consent for each such use or release, which consent shall be given in
Milliman’s sole discretion.

CONFIDENTIALITY. In connection with this Agreement, each party hereto (a “disclosing party”) may
disclose its confidential and proprietary information to the other party (a “receiving party”). Subject to the
exceptions listed below, a disclosing party’s “Confidential Information” means as information disclosed by the
disclosing party to the receiving party under this Agreement that is either: (i) clearly marked or otherwise clearly
designated as confidential or proprietary; or (ii) should be reasonably understood by the receiving party to be
the confidential or proprietary information of the disclosing party. Confidential Information shall include,
without limitation, the terms of this Agreement. During the term of this Agreement and after its expiration or
termination, a receiving party shall not disclose to any third party a disclosing party’s Confidential Information
without the prior written consent of the disclosing party. In addition, each party agrees to take reasonable
measures to protect the other party’s Confidential Information and to ensure that such Confidential Information
is not disclosed, distributed, or used in violation of this Agreement (which measures shall be no less than that
which a reasonable person would take with respect to like confidential, proprietary, or trade secret information).
Notwithstanding anything to the contrary, the obligations of the receiving party set forth in this paragraph shall
not apply to any information of the disclosing party which: (i) is or becomes a part of the public domain through
no wrongful act of the receiving party; (ii) was in the receiving party’s possession free of any obligation of
confidentiality at the time of the disclosing party’s communication thereof to the receiving party; (iii) is
developed by the receiving party completely independent from the Confidential Information of the disclosing
party; or (iv) is required by law or regulation to be disclosed, but only to the extent and for the purpose of such
required disclosure after providing the disclosing party with advance written notice, if reasonably possible, such
that the disclosing party is afforded an opportunity to contest the disclosure or seek an appropriate protective
order.

DATA RELIANCE. In performing the services hereunder, Milliman will rely on data and other information
provided to it by Client. Milliman will not audit, verify, or review the data and other information for
reasonableness or consistency. Such a review is beyond the scope of Milliman’s assignment. If the underlying
data or information is inaccurate or incomplete, the results of Milliman’s analysis may likewise be inaccurate
or incomplete.

GENERAL. This Agreement and any amendment hereto may be executed in two or more counterparts
(including by facsimile or email attachment), each of which will be considered an original and all of which
together will constitute one agreement. This Agreement shall not be deemed or construed to be modified,
amended, or waived, in whole or in part, except by a separate written agreement duly executed by the parties
to this Agreement. No document, purchase order, or any handwritten or typewritten text which purports to alter
or amend the printed text of this Agreement shall alter or amend any provision of this Agreement or otherwise
control, unless Milliman and Client both specify in writing that such terms or conditions shall control. Neither
party shall be liable for any delay or failure to perform due to causes beyond its reasonable control. Milliman
and Client are independent contractors and this Agreement will not establish any relationship of partnership,
Joint venture, employment, franchise, or agency between Milliman and Client. Neither Milliman nor Client will
have the power to bind the other or incur obligations on the other party’s behalf without the other party’s prior
written consent. Failure to enforce any term or condition of this Agreement shall not be deemed a waiver of the
right to later enforce such term or condition or any other term or condition of this Agreement.




This Consulting Service Agreement between Milliman, Inc. and Hampshire County Group Insurance Trust is

executed as of March 1, 2022.

Milliman, Inc.

By

Print Name:

Title:

Date:

Hampshire County Group Insurance Trust

By

Print Name:

Title:

Date:




2Z0Z/5L/20 palLg TZ0YL0 poudg Bumioday

N
A\
£LE85'C60°LS 00°0% ££°£85'260°1$ 12301
elp.Jed jo wseidoau
§8.2y0b00 BAIOV 06'8E0'Y6ES 0008 06'8€0'b6ES weubiew - 0910 Jey {00d  Zz0z/ve/L0 asnods 4 w0 €961L/81/£0
Aseno it
payoadsun jo wsedosu
S8.2¥0p00 SAROY $0'8LL'LEES 00°0$ v0'8/Liges eublep - 6950 Jood dood - Zzoe/zLilo wepusdaq 4 . olooor 1661/51/60
SHI[02 pue spususonsed
8706880700 SMIOY 62°9vE'8LES 0008 6L9pE'8LES XL - L ZGM J00d J00d  ZZ0zZ/ET/L0 asnodg E 96 8LBLIELISO o
ON snjeyg Pied pied pied sisoubeiq sisoufoid sisouboid soa dwysuopeiey  lspusn (1 1squapy |00 SuieN JuweN
dnols  jsquuiepy 18I0L Aoewieyy fedipaip pied 3seybiy  saposdsold  aadadsoniay FHRE Y lsquisyy 3sai4 jse
ISON

"@sodind Aue Joj UoRewIouI SIY} Jo 95N Woly Buisue Aiqey Aue sewisp pue poda: siyy Ul paulejuod uogewlojul au Bulpsebss seguesiem Jo suoneuasaidal

U SeNEUl YWSEOR 1unodde 8 0} pajliq Sem jeim Jo LOJEDIUI Ue Jou s! pue Auo sasodind justusias feul; pue Buriods) ssoT doig 10} s Hodeu s L "VINSEOE 0 Aligel 8U} Tou S| Sjuswemes Jo Bupiodas $50| do}s U0 papnjoul aq pinous Jo sijety

SIaLUeD jeLUBIXS W0y palinbas uoReuLIol ‘BBRIaA0d $507 dog Jnok Jspun 3jqeoydde jj ‘pasesial sem Ji Yaim o} juensind 1oeaU0D S} PUB ME] LI 90UBPICOOE Ui PUIBIUIRW Sq PINOYS PUB UOJRULIO! Uieay [euos.ed Jo/pue [equapyuos suiguos todas siy L
SHasnyoesse JO PI2IYS Snjg ssoio anig

1soybiH J0od [edlpay :ebesano) Jyausy

UbIH Aisp Jied 000'5.2$ ®(qronpaq sytoads

ybiH poo9 £¢02/0€/90 - 1Z0T/L0/L0 ‘pied

wnipay poog Aiap 220z/0%/90 - L 20T/LOLO ‘pasnayy

obelsny 0y Mo pICTEC | vereL sadA | equod

3800 8inind pajoadxy o4 [enusiod snyes sisouboid siajaweied Asijod

15 w A L20e/L0/20 ‘9eq eAnoey3
O¥O JONVUNSNI ALNNOD FHIHSINYH ‘aweN Japjoykalod

6160920 “Jepioykalod

Jodey Alewwung 9,001 sso dojg

i




zeoe/efe

HOV uo Suniem
zzoz/ot/t
HOV uo Suniem
Tz0z/or/T
woe/sie
1207/08/Z1

67 I8Y'V6T

pasinquiay

unowy jeroy

$S°I628

67656 TTT

YUIV8'LE

96'926'0Z

0v'6£8'2S
TTY08Zs

9E'vLLE

$

$  mor/i/e

$  wozfe/e

$  weor/i/e

$ eo/i/e

$  woz/i/e

$  zozfoz/t

S 1Toz/or/ir

9oy

pasanboy
aunowy jesa)

0E'0ET'OTT

SS'I62'8

676S6'TIT

vTOvsLE

96'976°00

0V'6£8'78

TU08TS

9EVLL'E

$

$

00'000°5LT

00°000°52Z

007000542

00°000°5£Z

OE0ET'SSE $

VB0ST'S6E $

BZ'656'98E $

OT'ELLEEE S

96°926'S67 $

88°L5Y05€ $

8YBLS'LEE $

9EVLLYBT $

feniup

ddns

(=)

ddng

ddng

+» JOIRASIURLPE Swie}> A papIADId B3RP JO YO paseq st aA0Ge Paisy uonewoju 3yj .,

9T'IS6'E

v6TIZ'T

20106

T9TY'ST

90°60£+T

60'789'88€

69°208'SEE

£5'866'28T

St wnoury papusg  wunoury papeg aeapied

PASY JuBwARY

s3pe3 papy

s

“n

YO'8LITI8E

06'8E0b6E

2T'850'98E

6L9vE'8LE

06°212'182

6L'SLL'T
6L'SLLT

6L'SLLT

$

5

paisanbay
WaWISINGUIRY

S1quanpag sadg

SWeD) pied [E10L

adAy 3u;

amxy

aLk Py

19 wewery sakopdur

XY 8 [e31paiy iS)yauag Pasano)
/N :2jquanpag yads hy
0005473 3jquanpag 23ds
£202/0€/9-120Z/T/L :aduey aeq pled oN ssajden
3uoN 2202/08/9- 120¢/1/Z zaBuey ajeq paunsu| T/t RLEBILGETNEEE
adAy unowy {enpiatpuy

suwir) / 1asey uaLng

B R A S ST

Avedwss wimuy vy

4RO¥D ¥3NLEYY

Yifodls.«

sy suensu] dnosn AJunod axysdwey

Bupsoday wiepy

o e R e S T U e

Si213WeIRd 1981UC) Jjpads

=U4




